
 

 

 
Notice of a public meeting of  

Member Support Steering Group 
 
To: Councillors Douglas (Chair), Boyce, Galvin, Looker and 

Runciman (Vice-Chair) 
 

Date: Thursday, 28 November 2013 
 

Time: 5.00 pm 
 

Venue: The Thornton Room - Ground Floor, West Offices (G039) 
 

 
A G E N D A 

 
 
1. Declarations of Interest    
 At this point in the meeting, Members are asked to declare: 

 
• any personal interests not included on the Register of 

Interests  
• any prejudicial interests or  
• any disclosable pecuniary interests 

 
which they may have in respect of business on this agenda. 
 

2. Minutes   (Pages 3 - 6) 
 To approve and sign the minutes of the last meeting held on 1st 

July 2013. 
 

3. Public Participation    
 At this pointing the meeting, members of the public who have 

registered their wish to speak regarding an item on the agenda or 
an issue within the Committee’s remit can do so. The deadline for 
registering is 5:00pm on Wednesday 27th November 2013. 
 



 
4. Personal Development Reviews.    
 Lesley Whiting from the company ‘Growing You’ will be in 

attendance at the meeting to talk to the Steering Group about 
potential frameworks for Personal Development Reviews. 
 

5. Update on Member Training Core 
Programme.   

(Pages 7 - 14) 

 This report provides Members with an update on the Member 
Training Core Programme. 

6. Work Plan   (Pages 15 - 16) 
 Members are asked to consider the Work Plan for the Member 

Support Steering Group. 
 

Democracy Officer 
Laura Bootland 
Tel:01904 552062 
Email: laura.bootland@york.gov.uk 
 
 

For more information about any of the following please contact the 
Democracy Officer responsible for servicing this meeting Laura 
Bootland Democracy Officer 
 

• Registering to speak 
• Business of the meeting 
• Any special arrangements 
• Copies of reports 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



About City of York Council Meetings 
 
Would you like to speak at this meeting? 
If you would, you will need to: 

• register by contacting the Democracy Officer (whose name and 
contact details can be found on the agenda for the meeting) no 
later than 5.00 pm on the last working day before the meeting; 

• ensure that what you want to say speak relates to an item of 
business on the agenda or an issue which the committee has 
power to consider (speak to the Democracy Officer for advice 
on this); 

• find out about the rules for public speaking from the Democracy 
Officer. 

A leaflet on public participation is available on the Council’s 
website or from Democratic Services by telephoning York 
(01904) 551088 
 
Further information about what’s being discussed at this 
meeting 
All the reports which Members will be considering are available for 
viewing online on the Council’s website.  Alternatively, copies of 
individual reports or the full agenda are available from Democratic 
Services.  Contact the Democracy Officer whose name and contact 
details are given on the agenda for the meeting. Please note a 
small charge may be made for full copies of the agenda 
requested to cover administration costs. 
 
Access Arrangements 
We will make every effort to make the meeting accessible to you.  
The meeting will usually be held in a wheelchair accessible venue 
with an induction hearing loop.  We can provide the agenda or 
reports in large print, electronically (computer disk or by email), in 
Braille or on audio tape.  Some formats will take longer than others 
so please give as much notice as possible (at least 48 hours for 
Braille or audio tape).   
 
If you have any further access requirements such as parking close-
by or a sign language interpreter then please let us know.  Contact 
the Democracy Officer whose name and contact details are given 
on the order of business for the meeting. 
 
Every effort will also be made to make information available in 
another language, either by providing translated information or an 

Agenda AnnexPage 1



interpreter providing sufficient advance notice is given.  Telephone 
York (01904) 551550 for this service. 

 
 
Holding the Cabinet to Account 
The majority of councillors are not appointed to the Cabinet (39 out 
of 47).  Any 3 non-Cabinet councillors can ‘call-in’ an item of 
business following a Cabinet meeting or publication of a Cabinet 
Member decision. A specially convened Corporate and Scrutiny 
Management Committee (CSMC) will then make its 
recommendations to the next scheduled Cabinet meeting, where a 
final decision on the ‘called-in’ business will be made.  
 
Scrutiny Committees 
The purpose of all scrutiny and ad-hoc scrutiny committees 
appointed by the Council is to:  

• Monitor the performance and effectiveness of services; 
• Review existing policies and assist in the development of new 

ones, as necessary; and 
• Monitor best value continuous service improvement plans 

 
Who Gets Agenda and Reports for our Meetings?  

• Councillors get copies of all agenda and reports for the 
committees to which they are appointed by the Council; 

• Relevant Council Officers get copies of relevant agenda and 
reports for the committees which they report to; 

• York Explore Library and the Press receive copies of all public 
agenda/reports; 

• All public agenda/reports can also be accessed online at other 
public libraries using this link 
http://democracy.york.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1 

 

Page 2



City of York Council Committee Minutes 

MEETING MEMBER SUPPORT STEERING GROUP 

DATE 1 JULY 2013 

PRESENT COUNCILLORS DOUGLAS (CHAIR), BOYCE AND 
REID (SUBSTITUTE FOR COUNCILLOR 
RUNCIMAN) 

APOLOGIES COUNCILLORS GALVIN, LOOKER AND 
RUNCIMAN 

 
PART A - MATTERS DEALT WITH UNDER DELEGATED POWERS 

 
1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
Members were asked to declare any personal interests not 
included on the Register of Interests, any prejudicial or any 
disclosable pecuniary interests which they may have in respect 
of items on the agenda.  None were declared.  
 
 

2. MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 14 

March 2013 be approved and signed by the 
Chair as a correct record. 

 
 

3. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
It was reported that there had been no registrations to speak 
under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme. 
 
 

4. DEMONSTRATION OF COUNCILLORS LAGAN LITE  
 
A presentation was given on the Councillors Lagan Lite system.  
This self-service system had been designed to enable Members 
to log requests direct to the Customer Centre online and to track 
their status.  The system also allowed analysis to advise on 
current issues and areas of concern across wards. 
 
Members noted that the intention was for a group of Members to 
trial the system prior to it going live. 
 
Members put forward the following suggestions: 

• Amend the terminology from “customer” to “resident” 

Agenda Item 2Page 3



• Add a field “feedback to resident”. 
• System to acknowledge that there may not always be a 

“customer” – for example, when Members are reporting 
issues which they have identified themselves. 

• Location field to enable a junction to be named rather than 
just a street. 

• The signing off of a complaint as being completed should 
rest with the Member. 

• Facility to enable an email also to be sent to the relevant 
Cabinet Member where appropriate. 

• The current list of categories used in the Lagan system 
would be circulated to enable Members to identify 
appropriate categories for inclusion in the drop-down list 
on the new system. 

• An option for Members to confirm whether or not they 
wished to receive standard notification emails confirming 
that their complaint had been logged etc. 

• It would be helpful if the system could also be available as 
a phone app.   

 
The Communities and Equalities team were intending to hold a 
drop-in session on 16 July 2013 and this would provide an 
opportunity to raise awareness of the Lagan Lite system.  
 
RESOLVED: (i) That the information on the Lagan Lite 
     system be noted. 
 

(ii) That the suggestions put forward be 
taken on board by officers prior to the 
system being piloted by Members. 

 
REASON: To enable Members to have input into the Lagan 

Lite system. 
 
 

5. MEMBERSPHERE  
 
Members received a presentation on the Membersphere 
Application, including its uses in accessing or sharing 
information within groups. 
 
As the next stage in its development, the application would be 
trialled by a group of Members prior to its launch in September 
2013.  Members would also be made aware of the application at 

Page 4



the drop-in session that was to be held with the Communities 
and Equalities team.   
 
RESOLVED: That the information on Membersphere be  
   noted. 
 
REASON: To raise awareness of the introduction of this 

new application. 
 
 

6. LOCAL DEMOCRACY WEEK  
 
Members considered a report that set out proposed activities for 
a week long programme to mark Local Democracy Week 2013.  
Members’ views were sought on the proposed programme.   
 
Members stated that they were pleased to note the extensive 
programme of activities.  They suggested that the proposed 
work shadowing could be further extended by involving more 
Members. 
 
RESOLVED: That the proposed programme of activities for 

Local Democracy Week 2013 be noted. 
 
REASON: To enable arrangements to be made for Local 

Democracy Week 2013. 
 
 
 

7. REVIEW OF MEMBER TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT POLICY  
 
[see also Part B minute] 
 
Members considered a report that reviewed the current Member 
Training and Development Policy in light of new approaches 
adopted towards training and developing Members for 2013/14 
and beyond. 
 
Consideration was given to Annex A of the report, which 
highlighted proposed amendments to the policy. 
 
RESOLVED: That it be recommended to Council that the 

revised Member Training and Development  
policy be adopted. 

 

Page 5



REASON: In order to ensure that the Council policy 
remains fit for purpose and reflects new 
working practices and commitments. 

 
 

PART B - MATTERS REFERRED TO COUNCIL 
 

8. REVIEW OF MEMBER TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT POLICY  
 
[see also Part A minute] 
 
Members considered a report that reviewed the current Member 
Training and Development Policy in light of new approaches 
adopted towards training and developing Members for 2013/14 
and beyond. 
 
Consideration was given to Annex A of the report, which 
highlighted proposed amendments to the policy.   
 
RECOMMENDED: That the revised Member Training and 

Development Policy be adopted. 
 
REASON: In order to ensure that the Council policy 

remains fit for purpose and reflects new 
working practices and commitments. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Councillor Douglas, Chair 
[The meeting started at 5.00 pm and finished at 7.00 pm]. 

Page 6



 

 

  
 

   

 
Member Support Steering Group 
 

28th November 2013 

Report of the Assistant Director: Governance & ICT 
 

Update Report on the Core Training Programme (1st June 2013 to 
1st November 2013) 

Summary 

1. This report informs Members of: 

• The current position 
• Take up at events offered to date 
• A summary of the feedback received 
• Analysis of the take-up 
• Future Core Programmes 

 
Background 

2. Prior to the 2013/14 municipal year, there was a requirement for 
Members to achieve a minimum training target due to the Council 
achieving I&DeA Member Development Charter Status in 2009. In 
March this year, the Steering Group took a decision not to seek to 
renew Charter Status on the basis of the current resources 
available. To reflect this, the Member Training and Development 
Policy was revised and approved at Council in July 2013. Following 
the changes to the Policy Members are no longer required to 
achieve a set number of training sessions, although a pared down 
core programme of essential and compulsory training is still 
available and Democratic Services have continued to keep a record 
of training sessions undertaken by Members. 

3. Under the Council’s Training & Development Policy, this Steering 
Group is empowered to monitor both take-up and feedback in 
relation to both the induction and core programmes. 

 

 

Agenda Item 5Page 7



 

Take Up at Events Offered to Date 

4. The revised Core Programme was rolled out in July this year and to 
date the following sessions have been offered or have taken place: 

• Licensing Act Training. 

• Corporate Appeal Training (cancelled). 

• Speaking in Public with Confidence (cancelled). 

• 2 Pre-Council Seminars on Community Pharmacy and the 
Tour De France. 

• Adult Safeguarding Informal Session. 

• Corporate Parenting Informal Session. 

• Certificate in Local Government 

5. Unfortunately, take up has been poor for most of the above 
sessions generally except the compulsory Licensing Training 
which had 12 members in attendance. It was identified that all 
Members on the Corporate Appeals Panel were up to date with 
their training and although a refresher was offered, it was not 
taken up. The informal policy sessions attracted a total of 5 and 3 
members respectively and the Speaking in Public with Confidence 
training which had received a positive response in 2012, was 
cancelled as the number of Members who indicated they could 
attend did not warrant running the session. As in previous years, 
attendance at pre-Council briefings has been good, particularly at 
the Tour De France briefing which saw 10 members in 
attendance.  

6. However, the new Certificate in Local Government is fully booked 
for its pilot year with good representation from Councillors, officers 
and the public, providing an invaluable opportunity for working, 
sharing and developing together.   

7. The first module on Civic History draws to a close on 12 
December 2013 and the new spring term commences on 16 
January 2014.  Feedback is being sought from the cohort of 
Members taking part in this innovative course developed by 
Democratic Services and the University of York.  

Page 8



 

Evaluation 

5. Evaluation forms are available at the end of events or emailed 
afterwards and Members are encouraged to complete these. The 
responses are reported back to the Member Support Steering 
Group and used by Democratic Services to inform future core 
programmes. 

6. In relation to the Licensing Act 2003 training, 10 evaluation forms 
were returned and on the whole Members found the training to be 
pitched at the right level and informative.  

7. Feedback received for the Adult Safeguarding and Corporate 
Parenting policy sessions has been positive. Those attending found 
the sessions to be informative and the following feedback was 
received from a Member who attended the Corporate Parenting: 
‘The corporate parenting part of Councillors responsibilities is, 
sadly, understated. The efficiency and dedication of Officers 
responsible for this area has led to the automatic acceptance by 
many Councillors, including me that “things will just 
happen.”However, this session brings home the diversity, 
complexity and importance of the care of children regardless of the 
type of family deprivation from which they suffer and which most of 
us take for granted. They are part of this countries future and are 
deserving of an investment of care – from all of us.’  

8. The feedback received to date for this municipal year and previous, 
indicates that informal policy sessions are enjoyed by Members. 
Officers conducting the sessions report that they have been useful 
and informative exercises and should be included in future Core 
Programmes. 

Monitoring of Take Up of Training & Development Opportunities 

Analysing Take Up 

9. The take up figures outlined above reflect Members engagement 
with events offered in the core programme, and topical briefings.  

10. Since the abolition of training targets, take-up in general has been 
low. Attendance at the statutory Licensing Training in June was 
good, but the two sessions on ‘Speaking in Public with Confidence’ 
were cancelled as few members indicated they would be able to 
attend, despite the sessions being in the Core Programme and 
reminders being sent via email.  The two informal policy sessions 

Page 9



 

‘Corporate Parenting’ and ‘Adult Safeguarding’ were well received 
by those that attended but had low attendances. The two pre-
Council briefings were attended reasonably well, possibly due to 
the convenient time prior to Council. 

11. As in previous years, Members are encouraged to notify 
Democratic Services of any external events they have attended 
throughout the year. Following the introduction of the ‘group pots’ 
Democratic Services has been approached by several Members for 
assistance in booking external events and these have been noted. 

12. In accordance with the Steering Group’s role, Members may wish to 
consider how they will encourage Members within their individual 
groups who have not attended events or activities to date to take 
advantage of the remaining sessions that will be offered throughout 
the remainder of the municipal year. 

Additional Training Requirement 2013/14 

13. Since the Core Programme for 2013/14 was compiled, there has 
been a change in the leadership of the Liberal Democrat Group.  
The new Group Leader, Councillor Aspden, is keen to provide 
some skills training for the Group in becoming an effective 
opposition group on the Council.   

14. Whilst traditionally, this Steering Group has not supported corporate 
development funds being allocated specifically to one group on the 
Council, in isolation, initial discussions with the Local Government 
Association indicate that they would be willing to offer Training 
Days with Lead National Peers or a similar LGA representative to 
all party groups.  

15. This offer would assist with developing opposition Councillors in the 
following areas such as: 

• Performance within City of York Council – holding the Cabinet 
to account and promoting Lib Dem policies from opposition.  

• Community Champions – helping Councillors to represent their 
wards and engage with their local communities.  

• Policy Development – learning from best practice in other 
authorities to bring forward other ideas for York.  

• Personal Goal Setting – giving Councillors the motivation and 
skills to develop a clear set of targets and responsibilities.   

Page 10



 

• Team Building – giving groups the skills to work collectively as 
a team and develop inter-group communications and relations.  

 

16. Discussions are still ongoing with the Local Government 
Association  regarding funding but it is anticipated that the Liberal 
Democrat Group would part fund this programme which would 
include potentially 2 training days for Liberal Democrat Councillors 
in York. The Steering Group is asked to consider whether 
supporting this programme, in principle, would be an appropriate 
use of Member development funds, given the potential for take up 
of a similar model from other Groups.     

17. A full budget update on spend against the Member Development 
Budget will be provided at the next meeting of the Steering Group 
but sufficient funds would be available to part fund this programme, 
should the Steering Group endorse these proposals.   

Future Core Programmes 

18. Although the next Core Programme is not due out until next year, in 
view of the reported low attendance at this years events so far, 
Steering Group Members may wish to begin consulting their groups 
for opinions on potential subjects for future training sessions. It has 
been demonstrated through comments received this year and last 
that the informal policy sessions are particularly enjoyable. As these 
sessions are relatively easy to organise and low in cost, 
suggestions for areas of interest will be gratefully received by 
Democratic Services.  

19. It has been identified by Officers that guidance on Declarations of 
Interest and the Councils Code of Conduct are possible areas for 
inclusion in future programmes. 

20. A draft Core Programme will be outlined at the next meeting for 
consideration for 2014/15, taking into account the budgetary 
position. 

 

 

Page 11



 

Options 

21. There are no specific options within this report, other than to decide 
whether to part fund the LGA support for the Liberal Democrat 
Group or not from the Council’s Member Development Budget.  
Otherwise, Members are asked to note and comment on the report  

Analysis 
 

22. Analysis of feedback received is contained within the body of this 
report. 

Council Plan 2011-2015 

23. The Core Training & Development Programme allows Members to 
develop their knowledge and skills and to understand key issues 
that may affect their residents and the city as a whole. This leads to 
improved decision making and service design. 

 Implications 

24. Financial – There are no known financial implications associated 
with the recommendations in this report, other than meeting any 
potential costs, from within budget for 2013/14, for Liberal 
Democrat Group training.  

25. There are no known HR, legal or other implications associated with 
the contents of this report. 

 

Risk Management 
 

26. In compliance with the Council’s risk management strategy there 
are no known risks associated with the contents of this report. 

 Recommendations 

27. The Steering Group are requested to note and comment on the 
report, in particular the evaluation of events, and to consider the 
proposals for Liberal Democrat Group training. 

 Reason: In order to comply with the monitoring arrangements set 
out in the Steering Group’s Terms of Reference as approved by 
Council. 

 

Page 12



 

 
Contact Details 

 
Author: 

 
Chief Officer Responsible for the 
report: 

Laura Bootland 
Democracy Officer 
Democratic Services 
Tel: 01904 552062 
 
Dawn Steel 
Head of Civic & 
Democratic Services 
Tel: 01904 551030 
 
 

Andrew Docherty 
Assistant Director: Governance & ICT 
Tel: 01904 551004 
 
Report 
Approved ü Date 18.11.2013 

 
    

Specialist Implications Officer(s)  None 
 
Wards Affected: All  ü 

 
 
For further information please contact the author of the report 
 
Background Papers: 
 
None 
 
 

Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



                                                                                                                                                                
Member Support Steering Group Annual Work Plan 2013/14 
MSSG Meeting  Detail 
November 2013 • Attendance of Lesley Whiting from ‘Growing You’ – Information on PDR’s 

• Update on Core Programme 
• Work Plan 

January 2014 • Draft Core Programme 2014/15 
• Member Development Budget Update 2013/14 
• Update on Councillors Lagan Lite 
• Work Plan 

In addition to the above the Steering Group will also consider other items including suggested training 
throughout the year. 
 

 

A
genda Item

 6
P

age 15



P
age 16

T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	
	2 Minutes
	5 Update on Member Training Core Programme.
	6 Work Plan

